
 

 

 

AGENDA 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  

PLANNING COMMISSION – REGULAR MEETING 

December 17, 2018 7PM 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

2. PUBLIC REMARKS 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   

A. December 10, 2018 Regular Meeting 

 

5. COMMUNICATIONS 

 A. Jeanette Feintuch RE: Special Use Permit #18111 

 B. Jibu & Ranjini John RE: Rezoning #18140 

 C. Dylan Maxwell RE: Rezoning #18140 

 D. Rajesh Nair RE: Rezoning #18140 

 E. Jessi Adler RE: Special Use Permit #18081 & #18101 

 F. Cecelia Kramer RE: Special Use Permit #18081 & #18101 

G. Joell Ackerman RE: Rezoning #18140 

H. James Weaver RE: Special Use Permit #18111  

 I. Jeanette Feintuch RE: Special Use Permit #18111 

   

 6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Rezoning #18160 (Giguere Homes), rezone approximately 7.36 acres 

located at 3760 Hulett Road from RR (Rural Residential) to RAAA (Single 

Family-Low Density) with conditions. 

 

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Special Use Permit #18111 (Fedewa Holdings), construct two multiple 

family apartment buildings with a total of 13 units at 1730 Chief Okemos 

Circle. 

B. Rezoning #18140 (Thomas M. Hitch), rezone approximately 2.87 acres 

located at 2530 & 2540 Jolly Road from RA (Single Family-Medium Density) 

to PO (Professional and Office). 

C. Rezoning #18150 (Meridian Township), rezone the south four acres of 

Parcel I.D. #21-226-011 from RDD (Multiple Family) to C-3 (Commercial), 

located on the east side of Okemos Road, south of Central Park Drive. 

 

8. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 and Special Use Permit 

#18091 (Newton Pointe LLC) – Resolutions to recommend denial.  

B. Resolution of Appreciation – Dante Ianni 

C. Resolution of Appreciation – Emily Stivers 

  

9. TOWNSHIP BOARD, PLANNING COMMISSION OFFICER, COMMITTEE CHAIR, AND 

STAFF COMMENTS OR REPORTS 

 

 

 



AGENDA page 2 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

December 17, 2018 7:00 pm 

 

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact: Principal Planner Peter Menser, 5151 Marsh Road, 

Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4576 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  

Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 Township Hall 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

10. PROJECT UPDATES 

A. New Applications – NONE  

B. Site Plans Received – NONE 

C. Site Plans Approved – NONE 

 

11. PUBLIC REMARKS 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

13. POST SCRIPT: DAVID PREMOE 

 

TENTATIVE PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

 

January 14, 2019 

  

1. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Rezoning #19010 (Woda Cooper Companies, Inc.), rezone approximately 

4.6 acres of a 5.9 acre parcel identified by Parcel I.D. #17-377-031 located 

north of Grand River Avenue, east of Sirhol Drive, and west of Wardcliff 

Drive from RX (One and Two Family Residential) to RC (Multiple Family-14 

dwelling units per acre). 

 

2. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

A. Rezoning #18160 (Giguere Homes), rezone approximately 7.36 acres 

located at 3760 Hulett Road from RR (Rural Residential) to RAAA (Single 

Family-Medium Density) with conditions. 

B. Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18034 (Meridian Investment 

Group, LLC), construct 70,213 square foot mixed use building with 88 

dwelling units at 2875 Northwind Drive. 

C. Special Use Permit #18031 (Meridian Investment Group, LLC), construct 

building greater than 25,000 square feet in size at 2875 Northwind Drive. 

 

 3. OTHER BUSINESS - NONE 

 

 

 



 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 

PLANNING COMMISSION  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

December 10, 2018 

5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198 

517-853-4560, Town Hall Room, 7:00 P.M. 

 

PRESENT: Commissioners Premoe, Trezise, Cordill, Scott-Craig, Ianni, Stivers, Richards, 

Shrewsbury, and Lane 

ABSENT: None 

STAFF:  Principal Planner Peter Menser and Assistant Planner Justin Quagliata. 

 

1.    Call meeting to order 

 

Chair Ianni called the regular meeting to order at 7:00P.M.  

 

2.  Public Remarks 

 

A. Jessi Adler, 1580 Hillside Drive, voiced concerns regarding Special Use Permit #18081 and 

Special Use Permit #18101. 

B. Ari Adler, 1580 Hillside Drive, voiced concerns regarding Special Use Permit #18081 and 

Special Use Permit #18101. 

C. Quenda Story, 4526 Marlborough, voiced concerns regarding Special Use Permit #18081 

and Special Use Permit #18101. 

D. Shinivas Shankariah, 2619 Coreopsis Drive, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18140. 

E. Cecelia Kramer, 4560 Oakwood, voiced concerns regarding Special Use Permit #18081 and 

Special Use Permit #18101. 

F. James Gorenflo, 3037 Miller Road of Ann Arbor, applicant with Fox Nissan Automobile 

Dealership, addressed comments made at the November 26, 2018 Planning Commission 

meeting by the commission members and provided an update. The applicant was also 

available for questions regarding Special Use Permit #18101. 

G. Fred Hawley, 4543 Eastwood Drive, voiced concerns regarding Special Use Permit #18081 

and Special Use Permit #18101. 

H. Mirza Baig, 2559 Lupine Court, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18140. 

I. Rajesh Nair, 3527 Myrtle Drive, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18140. 

J. Jibu John, 3533 Myrtle Drive, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18140. 

K. Abhijit Sarkar, 3539 Myrtle Drive, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18140. 

L. Colin Schiefler, 2752 Berwyck Road of Grand Rapids, Director of Green Castle/Fox Nissan 

Automobile Dealership, provided an update and was available for questions regarding 

Special Use Permit #18101. 

M. Theresa Sanchez Weiss, 4598 Seneca Drive, spoke in opposition to Special Use Permit 

#18111. 

N. James Weaver, 4622 Seneca Drive, spoke in opposition to Special Use Permit #18111. 

 

 

 

 

  

DRAFT 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes DRAFT 

December 10, 2018 

Page 2 
 

3.  Approval of Agenda 

 

Commissioner Cordill moved to approve the agenda as written. 

Supported by Commissioner Trezise.    

VOICE VOTE: Motion approved unanimously.  

 

4.  Approval of Minutes 

 

 A. November 26, 2018 Regular Meeting. 

 

Commissioner Richards moved to approve the minutes with minor revisions. 

Seconded by Commissioner Scott-Craig. 

VOICE VOTE:  Motion approved unanimously. 

 

5.  Communications 

 

Principal Planner Menser noted additional communications were received after the Planning 

Commission meeting packets were assembled. He further noted that hard copies of  

communications were distributed to the Planning Commission at their places on the days prior to 

tonight’s meeting and would be included on the agenda for the December 17, 2018 Planning 

Commission Meeting. 
   

6.  Public Hearings 

 

Chair Ianni opened the public hearing at 7:40 P.M. 

 

A. Rezoning #18140 (Thomas M. Hitch), rezone approximately 2.87 acres located at 2530 & 

2540 Jolly Road from RA (Single Family-Medium Density) to PO (Professional and Office). 

Special Use Permit  

 

Principal Planner Menser provided a brief summary of the staff report.  The focus was on the 

request for zoning. 

 

The representative for the owner, Thomas Hitch, 601 Abbot Road, explained the request.   

 

Public Comments:  

 

A. Brandon Bautista, 3528 Myrtle Drive, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18140. 

B. Jessi Adler, 1580 Hillside Drive, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18140. 

C. Shinivas Shankariah, 2619 Coreopsis Drive, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18140. 

D. Rajesh Nair, 3527 Myrtle Drive, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18140. 

E. Jibu John, 3533 Myrtle Drive, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18140. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes DRAFT 

December 10, 2018 

Page 3 
 

Planning Commission Discussion: 

 

Commissioner Richards noted if the property is rezoned PO (Professional and Office) then a buffer 

would need to be placed between the commercial and residential properties.  If residential building 

takes place on the property, then a buffer would not be required between the properties.  The 

potential benefits of rezoning to PO could be lower noise levels, and that the businesses would be 

closed during holidays, weekends and evenings.  During these times, lighting created by the 

business in the area might also not be as much of a concern. 

 

Commissioner Premoe asked Principal Planner Menser if home property values would be lowered 

in the area if commercial office space is added. Peter was not able to answer the question. 

 

Commissioner Scott-Craig commented on how busy Jolly Road is and how difficult it can be to pull 

out from the proposed property. There are topographical issues on the site making it expensive to 

grade the property for development and the retaining wall to the north is not sound. Commissioner 

Scott-Craig also claimed that the old abandoned home on the property is dangerous.  He further 

noted it could be possible to develop homes on the property instead and they would sell like most 

of the other new homes in the area. He claimed that office use would also be appropriate for 

transitional uses.   Meridian Township doesn’t want to negatively impact the homeowners in the 

area.  If the applicant could provide a plan it would be helpful for the Planning Commissioners to 

make a decision. 

 

Commissioner Cordill stated a change in zoning would create “spot” zoning and questioned if this is 

the appropriate direction to take.   Principal Planner Menser will explain this matter in the next 

staff report. 

 

A straw poll conducted by Chair Ianni indicated the Planning Commission would like to add Special 

Use Permit #18140 for action at a future meeting. 

 

Chair Ianni closed the public hearing at 8:35 P.M. 

 

B. Rezoning #18150 (Meridian Township), rezone the south four acres of Parcel I.D. #21-226-

011 from RDD (Multiple Family) to C-3 (Commercial), located on the east side of Okemos 

Road, south of Central Park Drive. 

  

Chair Ianni opened the public hearing at 8:36 P.M.  

 

Principal Planner Menser provided a brief summary of the staff report and also acted on behalf of 

the Township Board to address questions. 

 

Public Comments: 

 

A. Jean Wallick, 4989 Okemos Road, voiced concerns regarding Rezoning #18150 and the 

Okemos Drain.  Ms. Wallick stated every time work is done on Okemos Road it impacts her 

backyard. The Okemos Drain is loaded with debris and when it gets plugged, her yard 

floods.  In 1968 when she bought the house, it was a small stream and now it is a lot 

worse—making most of the backyard unusable.  Ms. Wallick mentioned her garage was on 

Okemos Road but had to be moved to Hillcrest due to issues relating to flooding. 

 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes DRAFT 

December 10, 2018 

Page 4 
 

B. Jessi Adler, 1580 Hillside Drive, voiced concerns regarding Rezoning #18150 and asked if 

the land swap between Meridian Township and the Meridian Mall would be green space. 

 

Commissioner Cordill asked Principal Planner Menser who could address the issues Ms. Jean 

Wallick had expressed. Principle Planner Menser stated that these concerns would be shared with 

the Ingham Country Drain Commissioner’s Office and Meridian Township’s Engineering 

Department. 

 

A straw poll conducted by Chair Ianni indicated the Planning Commission would be in favor of 

supporting the Rezoning #18150 Meridian Township. 

 

Chair Ianni closed the public hearing at 8:55 P.M. 

 

The Planning Commission took a ten minute recess. 

 

7.  Unfinished Business 

 

A. Special Use Permit #18081 (Lafontaine Automotive Group), construct new car dealership 

located at 1492, 1478, 1476, and 1448 Grand River Avenue. 

 

Principal Planner Menser provided a summary of the revised site plan. 

 

The applicant, Gary Laundroche, 4000 West Highland Road, provided an update on the project  

and was available for questions. 

 

Commissioner Lane moved to adopt the resolution, recommending approval of the Special  

Use Permit #18081 with the removal of amendment #7 (the variance is no longer needed) and the 

amendment of #17 to have additional and specific language to include:  The exterior rear lighting 

on the north side of the building shall be turned off except for security purposes, during non-

business hours, and utilize motion detectors. 

Supported by Commissioner Trezise. 

 

Commissioner Premoe and Commissioner Richards shared concerns regarding how Lafontaine 

 would enforce the prevention of test driving through the local residential subdivisions. Lafontaine 

responded saying it would be addressed during the training of their staff members.  

 

Commissioner Scott-Craig asked the applicant further questions regarding the proposed vehicle 

 display pads and ramp at the front of the property lining Grand River Avenue. He wanted to 

reiterate the importance of retaining as much green in front as possible to maintain the 

 character of the surrounding area. 

 

Commissioner Cordill asked about the height of the display pads. The applicant replied they are 

 the height of the top of the curb.  The pads are not higher than grass.   

 

VOICE VOTE: 

YEAS:  Commissioners Lane, Trezise, Richards, Stivers, Premoe, Shrewsbury, Cordill, Scott-Craig 

and Cordill 

NAYS:   NONE 

MOTION CARRIED:  9-0 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes DRAFT 

December 10, 2018 

Page 5 
 

 

B. Special Use Permit #18101 (Green Castle Properties, LLC.), construct 23,094 square foot 

new car dealership at 1614 & 1622 Grand River Avenue. 

 

Principal Planner Menser provided a summary of the revised site plan. 

 

The applicant, James Gorenflo, 3037 Miller Road of Ann Arbor, with Fox Nissan Automotive 

Dealership spoke earlier in the meeting, but was available to answer any questions. 

 

Commissioner Richards moved to adopt the resolution recommending approval of Special Use 

Permit #18101 (Green Castle Properties, LLC.) and #16 shall be amended to have additional and 

specific language to include:  The exterior rear lighting on the north side of the building shall be 

turned off during non-business hours except for security purposes and motion detectors shall be 

used. 

Supported by Commissioner Shrewsbury. 

 

Commissioner Scott-Craig encouraged the addition of evergreen trees with the other proposed 

trees for better year-round screening between the business and the neighboring subdivision.  

 

VOICE VOTE: 

YEAS:  Commissioners Richards, Shrewsbury, Premoe, Trezise, Cordill, Scott-Craig, Stivers, Lane 

and Ianni. 

NAYS:   NONE 

MOTION CARRIED:  9-0 

 

Principal Planner Menser noted the requirement to suspend Planning Commission bylaw 5.12 to 

proceed with the Planning Commission agenda as approved. 

 

Commissioner Richards moved to suspend Planning Commission Bylaw 5.12 to proceed with the 

evening’s agenda. 

Seconded by Commissioner Cordill. 

VOICE VOTE:  Motion approved unanimously 

 

C. Special Use Permit #18111 (Fedewa Holdings), construct two multiple family apartment 

buildings with a total of 15 units at 1730 Chief Okemos Circle. 

 

Principal Planner Menser provided a revised plan summary. 

 

The applicant, Gerald Fedewa, 5570 Okemos Road, provided a review of changes and was available 

for questions.  Greg Fedewa was also in attendance to assist with the presentation. 

 

Planning Commission Discussion: 

 

Commissioner Richards asked where the decks were located and he was told they are located on 

the second floor and about 8 ½ feet off the ground.  Commissioner Richards also asked what is on 

the third floor. The applicant described that there are two bedrooms facing the back lot with each 

having a 36 inch by 54 inch window.  No living areas are provided on the third floor. 

 

Commissioner Cordill expressed her concern with the height of the units for the surrounding area.   



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes DRAFT 

December 10, 2018 

Page 6 
 

Commissioner Scott-Craig expressed concern for the location of the decks and also wanted to know 

if Fedewa Holdings would build a fence as mentioned in the November 26th Planning Commission 

meeting to provide privacy for the surrounding homes in addition to the current natural tree line 

buffer.  Mr. Fedewa said he would do this if necessary, though it would be a staggered fence so trees 

would not need to be removed. 

 

A straw poll conducted by Chair Ianni indicated the Planning Commission would like to add Special 

Use Permit #18111 (adding the condition for a fence to be built near the tree line) for action at a 

future meeting. 

 

8. Other Business-None 

  

9. Township Board, Planning Commission Officer, Committee Chair, and staff comments or 

reports  

 

Principal Planner Menser commented about the November 26, 2018 Planning Commission meeting 

and the Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC.).  The Planning 

Commission failed to approve a motion to approve the resolution so at the December 17, 2018 

Planning Commission meeting the resolution will be brought back to recommend denial and it is 

important for the Planning Commission to note the reasons why so the Planning Commission can 

share them with the Board before the public hearing.  This is a housekeeping process. 

 

Commissioner Cordill raised a concern about traffic when trying to make a left turn onto Grand River 

from either Dobie Road or Central Park Drive.  Currently there is not a left turn light. With the future 

development planned, the problem could get worse. A traffic study could be done to see if a left turn 

light could be added for safety. 

 

Commissioner Richards made a motion for the Township to send a letter of recommendation that a 

study be done on the intersection. The study would evaluate the left turn movement off Dobie Road 

and Central Park Drive onto Grand River Avenue to see if installation of left turn lights could be added 

for safety reasons. 

Seconded by Commissioner Cordill 

VOICE VOTE:  Motion approved unanimously 

 

10.  Project Updates 

 

A. New Applications - NONE  

B. Site Plans Received - NONE 

C. Site Plans Approved  

1. Site Plan Review #18-95-14 (Fred Piette Co. Inc.), 200 square foot building addition 

and parking lot reconfiguration at 4876 Marsh Road. 
  

11.  Public Remarks 

 

A. Jeanette Feintuch, 4606 Seneca Drive, spoke in opposition to Special Use Permit #18111 (Fedewa 

Holdings). 

 

 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes DRAFT 

December 10, 2018 

Page 7 
 

B. Jessi Adler, 1580 Hillside Drive, wanted to show appreciation for the Planning Commission and 

Automobile Dealerships support and assistance through this process. Jessi Adler also requested 

clarification regarding Lafontaine and the discussion regarding striping, vehicle display pads for 

raised vehicles, and curb and gutters.  

 

C. Cecelia Kramer, 4560 Oakwood Drive, wanted to show appreciation for the Planning Commission 

and Automobile Dealerships support and assistance through this process. 

 

D. James Weaver, 4622 Seneca Drive, spoke in opposition to Special Use Permit #18111 (Fedewa 

Holdings). 

 

E. Chris Weiss, 4598 Seneca Drive, spoke in opposition to Special Use Permit #18111 (Fedewa 

Holdings). 

 

12.  Adjournment 

 

Commissioner Scott-Craig moved to adjourn the meeting. 

Supported by Commissioner Stivers. 

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.   

 

Chair Ianni adjourned the regular meeting at 9:34 P.M. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Debbie Budzynski  

Recording Secretary 



To my fellow Meridian Township residents on the Planning Commission:  

 

I am writing to voice my concerns about the proposed Fedewa apartment development on 

Chief Okemos Circle.  I live at 4606 Seneca Dr., and this building will essentially be in 

my backyard. 

 

There are several parts of this construction that will have a direct and negative impact on 

the ability of all of us living on Seneca Drive to have quiet enjoyment of our property:   

 

* The proposed building will overlook our yards and living rooms from three stories tall.   

Not only is this incredibly invasive from a privacy perspective, it is also out of character 

for all of the nearby homes and apartment buildings.     

 

* The building foundation meets the setback requirement of 50 feet from the property 

line, but will have a deck extended off the back by 8 feet.  This makes the functional 

setback only 42 feet from the property line.  Please deny the deck addition.  

 

* These decks will also have exterior lighting, which means the net effect to us is 8 

security lights shining directly into our backyards and homes all night long.   

 

* All new development in Meridian Township is required to provide their own "nature 

buffer" at the property line.  This developer is trying to evade that requirement by using 

our own privately owned trees as his buffer.  The few trees on his land are deciduous and 

offer zero privacy at eye level.  I urge the Commission to require substantial tree and 

shrub plantings. 

 

* Trees may not be enough.  One of the more enjoyable aspects of our neighborhood is 

the local deer population.  Unfortunately they eat most foliage up to 6 feet off the ground 

so one permanent option is an earthen berm, as used elsewhere in the Township to create 

privacy. 

 

* Trespassers have been a particular concern for us.  Walkers continually try to cut from 

Dobie Rd. to Hamilton Rd. by crossing our land.  This development will only exacerbate 

that, so for our security please require a 6 foot fence the entire length of the 

development's western property line.  It would be cost prohibitive for us property owners 

to have to cut down half our trees to make room for a fence because there are now people 

sleeping a few feet off our property line.  

 

* Negative impact on our property values.  Nobody actively wants to live immediately 

adjacent to a three story, brightly lit, and nearby apartment complex.  Nobody wants their 

living room to turn into a fishbowl.  This structure as planned will erase significant value 

from our properties. 

 

Please listen to these concerns and place appropriate controls and requirements on the 

developer.  I and my neighbors have chosen Meridian Township, and this neighborhood 

in particular to make our homes and raise our families.  Please don't prioritize a developer 



over the people who make up this community.  The issues above affect our quality of life, 

privacy, safety, and property values.   

 

       Your Neighbor, 

        

       Jeanette Feintuch,   

.                                                                                   4606 Seneca Dr.   

         



1

Peter Menser

From: Jibu John <write2jibs@icloud.com>

Sent: Sunday, December 09, 2018 1:43 PM

To: Peter Menser

Cc: write2jibs@hotmail.com; ef266dfa42dd3612bdd88c2037707235@reply.craigslist.org

Subject: Rezoning #18140

Dear Peter Menser, 

 

Regarding:  Rezoning 2530 & 2540 Jolly Road.  

 

This is in regards to the letter we received from the Meridian Township for public hearing on rezoning 

request from Thomas M. Hitch.  I live as a family on Myrtle Dr.  which is right behind this property.  I 

strongly raise my disagreement in rezoning the above mentioned property from residential to 

commercial, as it will negatively affect our current living conditions.  It will cause more disturbances in 

terms of sound and light pollution, and this is also a concern for security, as being a public commercial 

property there is an increased risk on our security.   

 

We brought our land and built the house in 2010 after strongly looking into multiple factors and this 

property in question was never a concern as it was marked residential.  Now, the possibility of this 

becoming a commercial land raises lots of concerns and fear.  Moreover, our property value will also 

come down dramatically due to being close to a commercial property and will make it harder for us to 

sell ours in the future.   

 

I strongly plead and urge Meridian Township to consider the living souls next to this property and make a 

decision that’s favorable to us.   

 

Respectfully  

Jibu and Ranjini John 

3533 Myrtle Dr. 

Okemos, Michigan 48864.  



1

Peter Menser

From: Dylan Maxwell <dylan.g.maxwell@gmail.com>

Sent: Sunday, December 09, 2018 9:55 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: RE: Rezoning #18140 (Thomas M. Hitch)

Dear Mr. Menser, 

 

I would like to express my concern regarding this rezoning request. As a nearby resident and property owner, I 

think that if approved this rezoning could have a negative impact on the value of my property.  

 

Recently the property at (approx.) 2476 Jolly Road was rezoned, and the public notice posted at the property 

indicated that the future occupant of the property would be a dentist. However, in the case of this request 

(#18140), there seems to be no information as to the intended future occupant of the property.  

 

I ask that this request be denied, at least until more information is known about the future occupant of this 

property. 

 

Sincerely, 

Dylan Maxwell 

3545 Myrtle Drive 

Okemos, MI 



1

Peter Menser

From: Raj Nair <rmnair09@yahoo.com>

Sent: Sunday, December 09, 2018 10:15 PM

To: Peter Menser; Rajesh Nair

Subject: Rezoning #18140 (Thomas M Hitch)

Hello - I live in 3527 Myrtle Dr, which is adjacent to the property that is being rezoned to commercial. I believe this is will 
negatively impact all household that is near the property in question. We are fearful of our safety and quality of life if any 
commercial property is built in the said lot.  
 
I am NOT in favor of the said property being rezoned to commercial 
 
Thanks 
Rajesh Nair 

































 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 

To:  Planning Commission  

 

From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 

 

  Mackenzie Dean, Assistant Planner 

 

Date:  December 13, 2018 

 

Re: Rezoning #18160 (Giguere Homes), rezone approximately 7.36 acres located 

at 3760 Hulett Road from RR (Rural Residential) to RAAA (Single Family- Low 

Density) with conditions. 

 

 

Giguere Homes has requested the rezoning of approximately 7.36 acres located at 3760 Hulett 

Road from RR (Rural Residential) to RAAA (Single Family-Low Density).  The site is located on the 

eastern end of a 17.91 acre parcel on the north side of Robins Way.  Only the 7.36 acre portion of 

the property is proposed for rezoning to RAAA.  The remainder of the property, approximately 

10.55 acres, would remain in the RR zoning district.  The subject site is located north of the 

Sanctuary subdivision (FP #04052), which was platted in 2004 and contains 48 single family lots.  A 

Consumers Energy right-of-way is located north of the subject site.  

 

The applicant submitted a letter offering to place eleven conditions on the rezoning, which 

includes the following: 

  

1. Limit current development of the site to a maximum of seven lots. 

2. Limit future development of the site to a maximum of seven lots. 

3. Establishment of a 50 foot wide natural preservation area along the south side of the parcel to 

be deeded to the homeowners association. 

4. Establishment of a five foot wide tree buffer on the north side of the 50 foot wide natural 

preservation area on the south side of the parcel, including deed restrictions on Lots 6 & 7 

requiring preservation of any trees within the buffer that have a trunk diameter greater than 

or equal to 12 inches. 

5. Establishment of an 80 foot natural preservation area along the west side of the parcel to be 

deeded to the homeowners association.  

6. Establishment of a 20 foot wide preservation area along the north side of the parcel, including 

deed restrictions on Lots 3, 4, & 5 requiring the preservation area remain undisturbed.  

7. Establishment of a 10 foot wide tree buffer area on the south side of the 20 foot wide 

preservation area along the north side of the parcel, including deed restriction on Lots 3, 4, & 5 

requiring preservation of any trees within the buffer that have a trunk diameter greater than 

or equal to 12 inches. 

8. Establishment of deed restrictions for the homes in any new development on the property that 

meet or exceed those of the existing Sanctuary development. 

9. Reservation of one seat on the architectural review board established in the deed restrictions 

for an elected representative from the existing Sanctuary Homeowners Association. 

10. Limitation imposed on Giguere Homes to not seek a variance to encroach into the required 

wetland buffer on Lots 5 & 6. 



 

Rezoning #18160 (Giguere) 

Planning Commission (December 17, 2018) 

Page 2 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

11. Restriction of construction hours to only between 8 a.m. to 6 p.m., Monday-Saturday.  

 

In a conditional rezoning the Planning Commission and Township Board have the option to choose 

whether or not to accept the conditions offered by the applicant.  In this specific rezoning request 

some of the conditions offered by the applicant are either not applicable to the rezoning or not 

enforceable by the Township.  Condition #1 can be applied to the rezoning; however Condition #2 

may be redundant given the maximum number of lots established in Condition #1.  Conditions 3, 4, 

5, 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10 are appropriate to be included as deed restrictions when the property is proposed 

for development as a platted subdivision, but are not relevant to the rezoning.  Condition #11 is 

unenforceable by the Township as there are currently rules in place limiting construction hours to 

between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m.         

 

The applicant was previously denied a request to rezone the property from RR (Rural Residential) 

to RAA (Single Family-Low Density) in early 2018 (REZ #18010).  The applicant submitted a 

second request to rezone the property from RR (Rural Residential) to RA (Single Family-Medium 

Density), which was denied in October of 2018 (REZ #18080). 

 

Master Plan 

 

The Future Land Use Map from the 2017 Master Plan designates the subject property in the R2 

Residential 0.5 – 3.5 dwelling units per acre category. 

 

2017 FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 

 
 

 



 

Rezoning #18160 (Giguere) 

Planning Commission (December 17, 2018) 

Page 3 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Zoning 

 

The subject site is located in the RR (Rural Residential) zoning district, which requires a minimum 

of 200 feet of lot width and 40,000 square feet of lot area.  The requested RAAA zoning district 

requires a minimum 100 feet of lot width and 20,000 square feet of lot area. 

 

ZONING MAP 

 

 
 

Physical Features 

 

The site contains a 2,116 square foot, two-story single family residence built in 1984 near the 

western end of the parcel with access on Hulett Road. The topography of the site slopes from 876 

feet above mean sea level in the center of the parcel to a low point of 864 feet above mean sea level 

near the western edge of the site. The Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for Meridian Township 

indicates the property is not located in a floodplain.  

 

Wetlands 

 

The Township Wetland Map depicts several wetlands on the site.  A wetland delineation report has 

been prepared for the property, but the report will need to be verified by the Township wetland 

consultant prior to any application for development.  Future development of the site will be required 

to comply with the wetland protection ordinance and water features setbacks as applicable. 



 

Rezoning #18160 (Giguere) 

Planning Commission (December 17, 2018) 

Page 4 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

  WETLANDS MAP 

 

 

  

 GREENSPACE PLAN 

 

 



 

Rezoning #18160 (Giguere) 

Planning Commission (December 17, 2018) 

Page 5 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

The Township Greenspace Plan shows a Priority Conservation Corridor (PCC) on the property.  A 

PCC is a network of ecologically significant open spaces.  

 

Streets & Traffic 

 

The site fronts on Robins Way.  Robins Way is a two-lane road designated as a Local Street.  Traffic 

counts are not available for Robins Way.  The most recent (2017) traffic count information from 

the Ingham County Road Department (ICRD) for Hulett Road, between Jolly Road and Bennett 

Road, showed a total of 3,552 vehicles in a 24 hour period. 

  

The table below compares estimates of future traffic volumes resulting from development of the 

subject property under both the existing RR zoning and proposed RAAA zoning using data from the 

Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual (8th Edition).  For each zoning 

district the land use with the highest potential traffic volume is identified and compared.  In this case 

the land use producing the highest potential traffic volumes for both the existing and proposed 

zoning districts are single family dwellings.   

 

 
Existing RR zoning 

(7 lots) 

Proposed RAAA zoning 

(7 lots) 
Change 

Peak Hour trips 

 

5.39 (a.m.) 

7.14 (p.m.) 

6.16 (a.m.) 

8.16 (p.m.) 

+0.77 

+1.02 

Weekday trips 66.99 76.56 +9.57 

 

Traffic generation is calculated using the estimated maximum number of dwelling units that could be 

developed on the property under both the current and proposed zoning.  Seven lots was used for 

estimating traffic under the proposed RAAA zoning. 

 

A traffic study is required when the trips from the highest potential traffic generator in the 

requested zoning district would generate more than 100 additional directional trips during a peak 

hour than the highest potential traffic generator permitted under the current zoning.  In this case, 

the rezoning does not generate greater than 100 peak hour trips so a traffic study was not 

required. 

 

Utilities 

 

Municipal water and sanitary sewer is available in the vicinity of the subject site.  The location and 

capacity of utilities for any proposed development will be reviewed in detail by the Department of 

Public Works and Engineering at the time of a development submittal.    

 

Staff Analysis 

 

The applicant has requested the rezoning of approximately 7.36 acres of a 17.91 acre parcel from 

RR to RAAA with conditions. When evaluating a rezoning request, the Planning Commission should 

consider all uses permitted by right and by special use permit in the current and proposed zoning 

districts, as well as the reasons for rezoning listed on page two of the rezoning application.  



 

Rezoning #18160 (Giguere) 

Planning Commission (December 17, 2018) 

Page 6 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

The applicant has offered conditions on the rezoning, which are detailed in the introductory 

paragraph of this staff report.  As noted, the majority of the conditions are not applicable to the 

rezoning.  The Planning Commission may choose to accept or reject any of the offered conditions.  

If approved, the rezoning and associated conditions would run with the land, so if the rezoning 

was approved and the property was sold the seven dwelling unit limit, or any other condition, 

would remain in place.   

 

Planning Commission Options 

 

The Planning Commission may recommend approval or denial of the request, or it may recommend 

a different zoning designation than proposed by the applicant to the Township Board.  A resolution 

will be provided at a future meeting. 

 

Attachments 

1. Rezoning application and supporting materials. 

2. Letter from Jim Giguere detailing rezoning conditions dated November 28, 2018. 

3. Rezoning criteria. 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\REZONINGS (REZ)\2018\18160 (Giguere)/REZ 18160.pc1.docx 

 

 

 

 







































 

 
Page 2 

Part II        REASONS FOR REZONING REQUEST 
 
Respond only to the items which you intend to support with proof.  Explain your position on the lines 
below, and attach supporting information to this form. 

 
A. Reasons why the present zoning is unreasonable: 

 
1)    There is an error in the boundaries of the Zoning Map, specifically: ______________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________         
 

2)    The conditions of the surrounding area have changed in the following respects: ____________ 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

         
3)  The current zoning is inconsistent with the Township’s Master Plan, explain: 

____________________________________________________________________________  
         
4)    The Township did not follow the procedures that are required by Michigan laws, when adopting 

the Zoning Ordinance, specifically: ________________________________________________ 
        ___________________________________________________________________________ 

       
5)    The Township did not have a reasonable basis to support the current zoning classification at 

the time it was adopted; and the zoning has exempted the following legitimate uses from the 
area: _______________________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
6)  The current zoning restrictions on the use of the property do not further the health safety or 

general welfare of the public, explain: ______________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

B. Reasons why the requested zoning is appropriate: 
 

1)  Requested rezoning is consistent with the Township’s Master Plan, explain: 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
2)  Requested rezoning is compatible with other existing and proposed uses surrounding the site, 

specifically:___________________________________________________________________  
   

3)  Requested rezoning would not result in significant adverse impacts on the natural environment, 
explain: _____________________________________________________________________ 

 
4)  Requested rezoning would not result in significant adverse impacts on traffic circulation, water 

and sewer systems, education, recreation or other public services, 
explain:______________________________________________________________________ 

 
5)  Requested rezoning addresses a proven community need, specifically: ___________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

6)  Requested rezoning results in logical and orderly development in the Township, explain: 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
7)  Requested rezoning will result in better use of Township land, resources and properties and 

therefore more efficient expenditure of Township funds for public improvements and services, 
explain: _____________________________________________________________________ 



 

 

To:  Planning Commission  

 

From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 

 

Date:  December 13, 2018 

 

Re: Special Use Permit #18111 (Fedewa Holdings), construct a 13 unit 

townhouse complex comprised of two buildings totaling 18,955 square feet 

at 1730 Chief Okemos Circle. 

 

 

The public hearing for SUP #18111 was held at the November 26, 2018 Planning Commission 

meeting.  At the meeting the Planning Commission agreed to consider a resolution at its next 

meeting to approve the special use permit with a condition requiring the applicant to construct a 

six foot tall slatted wood fence along the north, south, and west sides of the property.    

 

Planning Commission Options 

 

The Planning Commission may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the special use permit.  A 

resolution to approve the special use permit with conditions is attached. 

 

• Motion to adopt the resolution approving Special Use Permit #18111 with conditions. 

 

Attachment 

1. Resolution to approve with conditions. 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2018\SUP 18111 (Fedewa)\SUP 18111.pc3.docx   



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE Special Use Permit #18111 

 (Fedewa Holdings) 

 

 

 At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 17th 

day of December, 2018, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 

 

PRESENT: _________________________________________________________________                                                             

 

  _________________________________________________________________                                                            

 

ABSENT: _________________________________________________________________                                                              

 

 The following resolution was offered by _____________________ and supported by 

_________________________. 

 

WHEREAS, Fedewa Holdings has submitted a request to construct a 13 unit townhouse 

complex comprised of two buildings totaling 18,955 square feet on 1.52 acres at 1730 Chief Okemos 

Circle; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing at its regular meeting on 

November 26, 2018, and has reviewed staff material forwarded under cover memorandums dated 

November 20, 2018, December 4, 2018, and December 13, 2018; and 

 

WHEREAS, the subject site is appropriately zoned RC (Multiple Family, 14 dwelling units 

per acre), which allows for multiple family housing projects with three or more living units in a 

single structure on a single parcel of land by special use permit; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed project is consistent with the Future Land Use Map designation 

from the 2017 Master Plan of MR Residential 5.0 – 14.0 dwelling units per acre for the property; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, municipal water and sanitary sewer is available to serve the subject site; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed multiple family development meets the minimum design 

standards for lot area, lot width, maximum lot coverage, open space, setbacks, building height, and 

building dimensions as described in Section 86-376(g) of the Code of Ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed project is consistent with the general standards for granting a 

special use permit found in Section 86-126 of the Code of Ordinances. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby approves Special Use Permit #18111, subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

1. Approval is in accordance with the site plan prepared by BRS Engineering dated August 20, 

2018 (revision date December 2, 2018) and received by the Township on December 3, 2018. 

 

2. Approval is in accordance with the building elevations prepared by Jerry Fedewa Homes Inc. 

dated October 26, 2018 (revision date November 30, 2018) and received by the Township on 

December 4, 2018. 

 



Resolution to Approve 

SUP #18111 (Fedewa Holdings) 

Page 2 
 
3. The submitted site plan shall be revised to meet the required turn-around standards for 

emergency vehicles as described in Section D103 of the Fire Code.  The final location and design 

of the required turn-around is subject to the approval of the Township Fire Inspector. 

 

4. The applicant shall install a six foot tall slatted wood fence, or similar material, to screen the 

proposed development along the north, south, and west property lines of the parcel.  The fence 

shall be positioned so as to avoid removal of trees.  The final location and material of the fence 

shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Community Planning and Development. 

 

5. Construction on the project must commence within one year from the date of the special use 

permit approval or the approval shall become null and void.  

 

6. Approval is subject to the applicant obtaining all necessary permits, licenses, and approvals 

from the Ingham County Road Department, Ingham County Drain Commissioner, Michigan 

Department of Environmental Quality, and the Township, as applicable.  Copies of all permits 

and approval letters shall be submitted to the Department of Community Planning and 

Development. 

 

7. The utility, grading, and storm drainage plans for the site are subject to the approval of the 

Director of Public Works and Engineering and Ingham County Drain Commissioner and shall be 

completed in accordance with the Township Engineering Design and Construction Standards. 

 

8. No grading or land clearing shall take place on the site until the site plan has been approved by 

the Director of Community Planning and Development and grading and soil erosion and 

sedimentation control (SESC) permits have been issued for the project. 

 

9. All utility service distribution lines shall be installed underground. 

 

10. Any future building additions or revisions to the site layout will require amendments to Special 

Use Permit #18111. 

 

11. The final design of the trash and recycling facilities and related enclosures shall be subject to 

the approval of the Director of Community Planning and Development. 

 

12. Site accessories such as railings, benches, exterior lighting fixtures, and bicycle racks shall be of 

commercial quality and complement the building design.  The final design and location of such 

accessories shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Community Planning and 

Development. 

 

13. Site and building lighting shall comply with Article VII of Chapter 38 of the Code of Ordinances 

and shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Community Planning and Development. 

 

14. All mechanical, heating, ventilation, air conditioning, and similar systems shall be screened from 

view by an opaque structure or landscape materials (if at street level) selected to complement 

the building.  Such screening is subject to the approval of the Director of Community Planning 

and Development. 

 

 

 

 

 



Resolution to Approve 

SUP #18111 (Fedewa Holdings) 

Page 3 
 
ADOPTED: YEAS: _______________________________________________________________________  

 

   _______________________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                             

  NAYS: _______________________________________________________________________                           

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    ) ss 

COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

 

 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 

Charter Township Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a 

true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 

on the 17th day of December, 2018. 

 

 

       ______________________________   

       Dante Ianni 

       Planning Commission Chair 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2018\SUP 18111 (Fedewa Holdings)\SUP 18111 

resolution PC approval.docx 



 

 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

To:  Planning Commission  

 

From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 

 

  Justin Quagliata, Assistant Planner 

 

Date:  December 13, 2018 

 

Re: Rezoning #18140 (Hitch), rezone approximately 2.52 acres located at 2530 

and 2540 Jolly Road from RA (Single Family-Medium Density) to PO 

(Professional and Office). 

 

 

The public hearing for Rezoning #18140 was held at the December 10, 2018 regular meeting.  At the 

meeting the Planning Commission agreed to consider a resolution to recommend approval of the 

rezoning request at its next meeting.  A concern was raised with regard to whether or not the 

proposed rezoning constituted “spot zoning.”  An article from Michigan State Extension on spot 

zoning is attached.  Based on the nearby PO zoning and location of the property on Jolly Road staff 

does not consider this rezoning to be “spot zoning.” 

 

Planning Commission Options 

 

The Planning Commission may recommend approval or denial of the rezoning as requested by the 

applicant or recommend a different zoning category.  A resolution to recommend approval to PO 

(Professional and Office) is attached. 

 

• Move to adopt the attached resolution to recommend approval of Rezoning #18140. 

 

Attachments 

1. Resolution to recommend approval. 

2. MSU Extension spot zoning article. 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\REZONINGS (REZ)\2018\18140 (Hitch)\REZ 18140.pc2.doc 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE PO             Rezoning #18140 
Hitch 

2530 and 2540 Jolly Road 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 17th 
day of December, 2018, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT:    ________ ________________________________________________________________ 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT:             
 
 The following resolution was offered by ___ ________________ and supported by 
_______________________. 
 
 WHEREAS, Thomas Hitch requested the rezoning of two unplatted lots, approximately 2.52 
acres in total size, located at 2530 and 2540 Jolly Road from RA (Single Family-Medium Density) to 
PO (Professional and Office); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and discussed the rezoning at its 
meeting on December 10, 2018; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed and discussed the staff material provided 
under a cover memorandum dated December 4, 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, the subject site meets or exceeds the minimum standards for lot area and lot 
width of the proposed PO (Professional and Office) zoning district; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed rezoning would result in a logical and orderly development 

pattern by providing a transition between Jolly Road commercial activity to the east and adjacent 
single family residential uses to the north and west; and 
 

WHEREAS, public water and sanitary sewer services are available to serve the subject site. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Rezoning #18140 to rezone approximately 2.52 
acres from RA (Single Family-Medium Density) to PO (Professional and Office).  
 
ADOPTED: YEAS: _______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   
  _______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

NAYS:         _______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 



Resolution to Approve 
Rezoning #18140 (Hitch) 
Page 2 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 
Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 
and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission on 
the 17th day of December, 2018. 
 
 
       ___________________________________   
       Dante Ianni 
       Planning Commission Chair 

 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\REZONINGS (REZ)\2018\REZ 18140 (Hitch)\REZ 18140 PC resolution to 
approve.pc2.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



���������� ���	
�	���
	
	���
	������	�	���	��
�������

����������
�������� ����������!
�!���
!
!���
!������ ���̂



���������� ���	
�	���
	
	���
	������	�	���	��
�������

����������
�������� ����������!
�!���
!
!���
!������ ���̂V_̀ XYU]PaU*E2008FGG7775$,9%5$,95%.945K#&*$#&%*'/?#&$(0'#/;*-','0*2008FGG7775$,9%5$,95%.9*E2008FGG7775$,9%5$,95%.945*<#*2(-%*(.'1%,0*#?*'/?#&$(0'#/*.%)'-%&%.*,0&('120*0#*+#9&*%$(')*'/3#>;*-','02008FGG7775$,9%5$,95%.9G/%7,)%00%&,*E2008FGG7775$,9%5$,95%.9G/%7,)%00%&,45*<#*"#/0("0*(/%>8%&0*'/*+#9&*(&%(;*-','0*2008FGG%>8%&05$,9%5$,95%.9*E2008FGG%>8%&05$,9%5$,95%.94;*#&*"())*bbbcABCDdA6*Ebbbcefbcgded45



 

 
Page 2 

Part II        REASONS FOR REZONING REQUEST 
 
Respond only to the items which you intend to support with proof.  Explain your position on the lines 
below, and attach supporting information to this form. 

 
A. Reasons why the present zoning is unreasonable: 

 
1)    There is an error in the boundaries of the Zoning Map, specifically: ______________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________         
 

2)    The conditions of the surrounding area have changed in the following respects: ____________ 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

         
3)  The current zoning is inconsistent with the Township’s Master Plan, explain: 

____________________________________________________________________________  
         
4)    The Township did not follow the procedures that are required by Michigan laws, when adopting 

the Zoning Ordinance, specifically: ________________________________________________ 
        ___________________________________________________________________________ 

       
5)    The Township did not have a reasonable basis to support the current zoning classification at 

the time it was adopted; and the zoning has exempted the following legitimate uses from the 
area: _______________________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
6)  The current zoning restrictions on the use of the property do not further the health safety or 

general welfare of the public, explain: ______________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

B. Reasons why the requested zoning is appropriate: 
 

1)  Requested rezoning is consistent with the Township’s Master Plan, explain: 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
2)  Requested rezoning is compatible with other existing and proposed uses surrounding the site, 

specifically:___________________________________________________________________  
   

3)  Requested rezoning would not result in significant adverse impacts on the natural environment, 
explain: _____________________________________________________________________ 

 
4)  Requested rezoning would not result in significant adverse impacts on traffic circulation, water 

and sewer systems, education, recreation or other public services, 
explain:______________________________________________________________________ 

 
5)  Requested rezoning addresses a proven community need, specifically: ___________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

6)  Requested rezoning results in logical and orderly development in the Township, explain: 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
7)  Requested rezoning will result in better use of Township land, resources and properties and 

therefore more efficient expenditure of Township funds for public improvements and services, 
explain: _____________________________________________________________________ 



 

 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 
 
  Justin Quagliata, Assistant Planner 
 
Date:  December 13, 2018 
 
Re: Rezoning #18150 (Meridian Township), rezone approximately four acres 

located at 5000 Okemos Road from RDD (Multiple Family) to C-3 
(Commercial). 

 
 
The public hearing for Rezoning #18150 was held at the December 10, 2018 regular meeting.  At the 
meeting the Planning Commission agreed to consider a resolution to recommend approval of the 
rezoning request at its next meeting. 
 
Planning Commission Options 
 
The Planning Commission may recommend approval or denial of the rezoning as requested by the 
applicant or recommend a different zoning category.  A resolution to recommend approval to C-3 
(Commercial) is attached. 
 

 Move to adopt the attached resolution to recommend approval of Rezoning #18150. 
 
Attachment 
1. Resolution to recommend approval. 
 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\REZONINGS (REZ)\2018\18150 (Meridian Township)\REZ 18150.pc2.doc 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE C-3             Rezoning #18150 
Meridian Township 
5000 Okemos Road 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 17th 
day of December, 2018, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT:    ________ ________________________________________________________________ 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT:             
 
 The following resolution was offered by ___ ________________ and supported by 
_______________________. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Board initiated the rezoning of approximately four acres located 
at 5000 Okemos Road from RDD (Multiple Family) to C-3 (Commercial); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and discussed the rezoning at its 
meeting on December 10, 2018; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed and discussed the staff material provided 
under a cover memorandum dated December 5, 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, the subject site meets or exceeds the minimum standards for lot area and lot 
width of the proposed C-3 (Commercial) zoning district; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed rezoning to C-3 (Commercial) is consistent with the 2017 Future 

Land Use Map designation of Mixed Use Core; and 
 

WHEREAS, the subject site is located adjacent to properties zoned C-3 (Commercial) to the 
east and south; and 
 

WHEREAS, public water and sanitary sewer services are available to serve the subject site. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Rezoning #18150 to rezone approximately four 
acres from RDD (Multiple Family) to C-3 (Commercial).  
 
ADOPTED: YEAS: _______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   
  _______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

NAYS:         _______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 



Resolution to Approve 
Rezoning #18150 (Meridian Township) 
Page 2 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 
Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 
and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission on 
the 17th day of December, 2018. 
 
 
       ___________________________________   
       Dante Ianni 
       Planning Commission Chair 

 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\REZONINGS (REZ)\2018\REZ 18150 (Meridian Township)\REZ 18150 PC resolution 
to approve.pc2.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

To:  Planning Commission  

 

From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 

 

Date:  December 14, 2018 

 

Re: Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 and Special Use Permit 

#18091 (Newton Pointe, LLC) 

 

 

At its November 26, 2018 meeting the Planning Commission considered resolutions to recommend 

approval of Mixed Use Planned Unit Development (MUPUD) #18044 and Special Use Permit (SUP) 

#18091.  The resolutions failed for lack of support and the project was recommended for denial to 

the Township Board.  To ensure a complete public record staff has drafted resolutions for both the 

MUPUD and SUP that detail the reasons for denial identified by the Commission. 

 

• Motion to adopt the resolutions recommending denial of Mixed Use Planned Unit 

Development #18044 and Special Use Permit #18091. 

 

Attachment 

1. Resolution to recommend denial of MUPUD #18044. 

2. Resolution to recommend denial of SUP #18091. 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\MIXED USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS (MUPUD)\2018\MUPUD 18044 (Newton 

Pointe LLC) Newton Park\MUPUD 18044.pc3.docx 



RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND DENIAL Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 

 (Newton Pointe, LLC) 

 

 

 At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 17th 

day of December, 2018, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 

 

PRESENT: _________________________________________________________________                                                             

 

  _________________________________________________________________                                                            

 

ABSENT: _________________________________________________________________                                                              

 

 The following resolution was offered by _____________________ and supported by 

_________________________. 

 

WHEREAS, Newton Pointe, LLC has submitted a request to establish a mixed use planned unit 

development (MUPUD) identified as Newton Park on 23.95 acres located at 6276 Newton Road and a 

property recognized as Parcel I.D. #04-252-005; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed mixed use planned unit development includes the construction of a 

new 86,468 square foot mixed use building with 85 multiple family dwelling units and 19,367 

square feet of commercial space, 10, 10-unit multiple family buildings, six, four-unit single family 

attached buildings, nine single family dwellings, and a 4,778 square foot clubhouse; and 

 

WHEREAS, 19,367 square feet of commercial space, 238,719 square feet of residential 

space, and a total of 218 dwelling units are proposed in the project; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing at its regular meeting on 

November 5, 2018, and has reviewed staff material forwarded under cover memorandums dated 

October 31, 2018 and November 20, 2018; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission discussed the proposed project at its meeting on 

November 26, 2018 and the prepared motion to recommend approval to the Township Board failed 

for lack of support; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the buildings in the mixed use planned unit development as currently proposed 

do not provide adequate setback from the adjacent road rights-of-way to the west and north or the 

future phases of the Sierra Ridge Estates single family subdivision to the south; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed location of the Newton Road driveway, recycling and trash 

facilities, mail kiosk, clubhouse, and pool will produce noise, traffic, and odor will which adversely 

affect the future phases of the Sierra Ridge Estates single family subdivision to the south; and 

 

WHEREAS, as designed the proposed project creates bottlenecks and traffic concerns at 

both the Newton Road and Saginaw Highway entrances to the property; and 

 

WHEREAS, the requested waivers for building setbacks, parking lot setbacks, number of 

parking spaces, signage, and water feature setbacks are too numerous and significant in scale to 

meet the spirit and intent of the MUPUD ordinance. 

 



Resolution to Recommend Denial 

MUPUD #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC) 

Page 2 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends denial of Mixed Use Planned Unit Development 

#18044. 

 

ADOPTED: YEAS: _______________________________________________________________________  

 

   _______________________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                             

  NAYS: _______________________________________________________________________                           

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    ) ss 

COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

 

 

 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 

Charter Township Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a 

true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 

on the 17th day of December, 2018. 

 

 

       ______________________________   

       Dante Ianni 

       Planning Commission Chair 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\MIXED USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS (MUPUD)\2018\MUPUD 18044 (Newton 

Pointe LLC) Newton Park\MUPUD 18044 resolution PC denial.docx 



RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND DENIAL Special Use Permit #18091 

 (Newton Pointe, LLC) 

 

 

 At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 17th 

day of December, 2018, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 

 

PRESENT: _________________________________________________________________                                                             

 

  _________________________________________________________________                                                            

 

ABSENT: _________________________________________________________________                                                              

 

 The following resolution was offered by _____________________ and supported by 

_________________________. 

 

WHEREAS, Newton Pointe, LLC has submitted a request to construct a project identified as 

Newton Park on 23.95 acres located at 6276 Newton Road and a property recognized as Parcel I.D. 

#04-252-005; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed project includes the construction of construction of a new 86,468 

square foot mixed use building with 85 multiple family dwelling units and 19,367 square feet of 

commercial space, 10, 10-unit multiple family buildings, six, four-unit single family attached 

buildings, nine single family dwellings, and a 4,778 square foot clubhouse; and 

 

WHEREAS, 19,367 square feet of commercial space, 238,719 square feet of residential 

space, and a total of 218 dwelling units are proposed in the project; and  

 

WHEREAS, a special use permit is required for constructing a group of buildings totaling more 

than 25,000 square feet in gross floor area; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing at its regular meeting on 

November 5, 2018, and has reviewed staff material forwarded under cover memorandums dated 

October 31, 2018 and November 20, 2018; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission discussed the proposed project at its meeting on 

November 26, 2018 and the prepared motion to recommend approval to the Township Board failed 

for lack of support; and 

 

WHEREAS, the buildings in the mixed use planned unit development as currently proposed 

do not provide an adequate setback from the adjacent road rights-of-way to the west and north or 

the future phases of the Sierra Ridge Estates single family subdivision to the south; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed location of the Newton Road driveway, recycling and trash 

facilities, mail kiosk, clubhouse, and pool will produce noise, traffic, and odor will which adversely 

affect the future phases of the Sierra Ridge Estates single family subdivision to the south; and 

 

WHEREAS, as designed the proposed project creates bottlenecks and traffic concerns at 

both the Newton Road and Saginaw Highway entrances to the property; and 

 



Resolution to Recommend Denial 

SUP #18091 (Newton Pointe, LLC) 

Page 2 
 

WHEREAS, the requested waivers for building setbacks, parking lot setbacks, number of 

parking spaces, signage, and water feature setbacks are too numerous and significant in scale to 

meet the spirit and intent of the MUPUD ordinance. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends denial of Special Use Permit #18091. 

 

ADOPTED: YEAS: _______________________________________________________________________  

 

   _______________________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                             

  NAYS: _______________________________________________________________________                           

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    ) ss 

COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

 

 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 

Charter Township Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a 

true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 

on the 17th day of December, 2018. 

 

 

       ______________________________   

       Dante Ianni 

       Planning Commission Chair 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2018\SUP 18091 (Newton Pointe LLC) Newton Park\SUP 

18091 resolution PC denial.docx 



RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION – DANTE IANNI 
 

 At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 

County, Michigan, held on the 17th day of December 2018 at 7:00 p.m., local time. 
 

PRESENT: __________________________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSENT: __________________________________________________________________________ 

  

 The following resolution was offered by Commissioner                         and supported by Commissioner 

                       .  
 

  WHEREAS, Dante Ianni has been a member of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of 

Meridian since 2012; and   
   

 WHEREAS, Dante Ianni dedicated his time and effort to the Planning Commission serving as 

Planning Commission Chair in 2018; and 
 

 WHEREAS, Dante Ianni has attended and participated in numerous and sometimes lengthy regular 

meetings, work sessions, and special meetings to consider day-to-day and future planning issues and 

proposals; and 
 

 WHEREAS, Dante Ianni thoughtfully considered each request presented before the Planning 

Commission during his term. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN as follows: 
 

The Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, by means of resolution, extends to 

Dante Ianni grateful thanks for his voluntary effort on behalf of all residents of the community during this 

period of dedicated service on the Planning Commission. 
 

ADOPTED: YEAS: __________________________________________________________________________ 

 

  NAYS: __________________________________________________________________________ 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

 

 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified Chairperson of the Planning Commission of the Charter 

Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and 

complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission on the 17th day of 

December 2018. 
 

 

        _________________________________ 

        John Scott-Craig 

        Planning Commission Vice-Chair 



RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION – EMILY STIVERS 
 

 At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 

County, Michigan, held on the 17th day of December 2018 at 7:00 p.m., local time. 
 

PRESENT: __________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSENT: __________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

  

 The following resolution was offered by Commissioner                         and supported by Commissioner 

                       .  
 

  WHEREAS, Emily Stivers has been a member of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township 

of Meridian since 2018; and   
   

 WHEREAS, Emily Stivers dedicated her time and effort to the Planning Commission; and 
 

 WHEREAS, Emily Stivers has attended and participated in numerous and sometimes lengthy regular 

meetings, work sessions, and special meetings to consider day-to-day and future planning issues and 

proposals; and 
 

 WHEREAS, Emily Stivers thoughtfully considered each request presented before the Planning 

Commission during her term. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN as follows: 
 

The Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, by means of resolution, extends to 

Emily Stivers grateful thanks for her voluntary effort on behalf of all residents of the community during this 

period of dedicated service on the Planning Commission. 
 

ADOPTED: YEAS: __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

  NAYS: _______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

 

 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified Chairperson of the Planning Commission of the Charter 

Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and 

complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission on the 17th day of 

December 2018. 
 

 

        _________________________________ 

        John Scott-Craig 

        Planning Commission Vice-Chair 


	December 17 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Agenda
	1 Jeanette Feintuch
	2 Jibu & Ranjini John
	3 Dylan Maxwell
	4 Rajesh Nair
	5 Jessi Adler
	6 Cecelia Kramer
	7 Joell Ackerman
	8 James Weaver
	9 Jeanette Feintuch
	REZ 18160.pc1
	REZ 18160 application
	REZ 18160 application materials
	Conditions offered by applicant
	REZONING criteria
	SUP 18111.pc3
	SUP 18111 resolution PC approval
	REZ 18140.pc2
	REZ 18140 PC resolution to approve.pc2
	How to spot a spot zoning - MSU Extension
	REZONING criteria
	REZ 18150.pc2 with attachment
	REZ 18150.pc2
	REZ 18150 PC resolution to approve.pc2

	MUPUD 18044.pc3
	MUPUD 18044 resolution PC denial
	SUP 18091 resolution PC denial
	Dante Ianni 2018
	Emily Stivers 2018

